EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
SEPTEMBER 24, 2025
MINUTES

Committee members present: Chairman Billy Fried; Robb Jensen; Diana Harris; Steven Schreier
Absent: Scott Holewinski; Russ Fisher; Connor Showalter
Student Representative: Parker Lee

Call to order: Chairman Fried called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. in the County Board Room of
the Oneida County Courthouse. The meeting has been properly posted and mailed in accordance
with the Wisconsin Open Meeting law and the facility is handicap accessible. Jensen introduced his
student member of the Youth Governance Program, Parker Lee.

Approve Agenda:
Motion/Second: Jensen/Schreier to approve today’s Amended Agenda with the order of items at
the Chair’s discretion. All “Aye”; Motion carried. Student Vote; 1 Aye.

Approve Minutes of Augqust 27, 2025:
Motion/Second: Schreier/Fried to approve the Minutes of August 27, 2025. All “Aye”; Motion
carried. Student Vote; 1 Aye.

Public comment: None

Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and Substance Use Program (COSSUP) Funding:

Fried stated that he is looking to see exactly what this can be used for and how much funding this
grant is. Public Health Director Linda Conlon explained that this is a three-year Federal Grant with
criteria. Conlon noted that when the grant is written for there is a work plan and that work plan has to
be executed. Conlon stated that this is awarded based on the work plan and there is little variance on
implementation. Community Health Specialist Jenny Chiamulera explained that COSSUP stands for
Comprehensive Opioid Stimulant and Substance Abuse Program and explained the purpose of the
grant is based off the RFP. Chiamulera explained that the objectives determined were based on our
community's assessment needs. Chiamulera noted that one of the objectives is pre-arrest deflection
and diversion, this would deflect persons to treatment and away from the criminal justice system.
Chiamulera explained additional objectives are expanding access to peer support and access to
transitional recovery housing. Chiamulera reported that this grant is a federal grant awarded
originally in 2023, starting in March of 2024. Chiamulera stated that the funding is set to end in 2026
but there is a potential for it to continue. Fried questioned the amount of funding issued. Conlon
stated that this is reimbursed as it is spent, noting that the transitional housing objective is the largest
expenditure of this grant. Discussion regarding the COSSUP fund matching the Opioid Funds.
Chiamulera explained that it is meant to stand alone, the Vital Strategies Grant was used as a match
for the Opioid Funding. Chiamulera reported that $840,000 was awarded to the County over a three-
year period. Chiamulera stated that thirty percent of that went to recovery housing. Conlon stated it
takes a long time to get contracts through and they are more than likely to get an extension. Conlon
explained that there will be no more funds than the $840,000 that was awarded. Human Services
Director Beth Hoerchler stated that recovery coaches may be billable through the CCS Mental Health
program in the future. Hoerchler explained they are looking at potentially funding this through another
grant when this expires. Conlon stated this is 100% Federally funded with no matching funds
required.




2026 Health, Dental and Vision Renewal:

Lueneburg gave an update reminding the committee that the renewal was 4.9 Percent with no
changes. Lueneburg explained that she gave options to reduce the premiums further. Lueneburg
stated that she brought forth what other counties are doing, she provided a packet of information on
17 other counties. Lueneburg explained that Northern Wisconsin is 36% higher in Health Care Costs,
the packet of information submitted also compares Northern Wisconsin versus the southern part of
the state. Lueneburg explained that she specifically looked at comparisons in the Northern area.
Lueneburg explained that Oneida County has one of the highest deductibles in those comparisons,
this was implemented to keep costs down. Lueneburg also noted that each county will have differing
levels of claims, this would affect the premiums. Lueneburg presented the current plans offered to
employees. Discussion regarding the proposed plans for the 2026 Health Insurance Renewal.
Lueneburg noted that the insurance contract is not signed until after the budget hearings and the
budget is set. County Clerk/Administrative Coordinator Tracy Hartman explained that employees
have made sacrifices throughout the years to keep the premiums low. Fried went over the Vision and
Dental, noting the premium is fully paid by the employee. Fried reported that the Committee supports
the renewal for the Vision and Dental Plans. Fried stated that we are not looking at the contribution
amounts, just the plans at this time. Schreier noted that this is not set in stone and could be changed
at the budget hearings. Lueneburg explained her preference would be Option 1 with no changes but
a good middle ground would be Option 2. Lueneburg stated that Option 1 is no changes. Lueneburg
explained that Option 2 is changing the Emergency Room copay from $250 per Emergency Room
visit to be changed to a $30 copay and the remaining cost would be applied to the deductible. It
would also change the Co-insurance from 90/10 percent to 80/20 percent. Schreier stated he would
like to go status quo and make a decision at the budget hearings.

Motion/Second: Schreier/Harris to approve the 2026 Option 1 no plan change. 1 Nay, Fried; 3 Aye,
Jensen, Harris, Schreier; 1 Aye, Student Vote; Motion passes.

Break called at 9:42 a.m.
Return from break 9:50 a.m.

2027 — 2028 Capital Improvement Projects:

Smigielski reported that the 2026 CIP projects were preliminarily approved. Smigielski explained that
we are going over the 2027 and 2028 today. Smigielski noted that if all submitted projects were
approved, the General Fund Transfers would total $20.7 Million for the three years. Smigielski noted
that a large portion of that is the Highway Facility project. Jensen stated that if we are moving
forward with these projects, we may need to look into bonding. Smigielski stated this is nonbinding,
but she can add bonding as an option in the Capital Improvement Plan. Fried stated that we are
noting that these have been received for consideration in the future.

ITS 2026 Budget Adjustment:

e Hearing Room A/V System — IT Director Jason Rhodes stated this was brought up in the CIP
meetings that this should not be part of the CIPS and should be part of the budget. Rhodes
stated that we are looking into this and explained that it would be a one time $30,000 hardware
expense. Rhodes stated that this Hearing Room did not have A/V at all when the project for
Branch | and Branch Il went through their update. Rhodes noted that the only way to pay for
this, if this cannot be considered a CIP, is to place it in their budget. Discussion regarding the
Courts paying for the project. Fried noted that we could see if it is eligible for Opioid funds as
an option, we just need to figure out how to pay for it.

e Buildings and Grounds Brightly Asset Inventory Software Implementation — Rhodes stated that
the initial year would be $8,000 with $6,000 for future years. Rhodes stated they are looking
into different vendors at this time that are less expensive. Fried asked if there is something
that we already have that has the capabilities. Kennedy stated they are still looking into this




and it does not need to be funded at this time. Kennedy noted that she has talked to IT
regarding different options.

Contingency Budget:

Smigielski stated that there is a preliminary Contingency Budget in the packet. Smigielski stated that
the allowable Tax Levy increase for next year is 1.3%, which is $207,000 for next year. Smigielski
presented the requests. Discussion regarding the funding requests and what is left over. Smigielski
went over the sales tax. Smigielski explained that the tax levy formula is set by state statute.
Smigielski reported that it looks that we will be right on target with Sales Tax this year. Smigielski
noted that next year per Forward Analytics the projection looks to be a 2.9% increase. Smigielski
explained that rent for Health and ADRC can be applied and charged to grants and programs, this
would pay back some of the overhead to the General Fund. Smigielski presented the General Fund
balance, noting that there could be large draws for out-of-home care.

Property, Liability and Workers Comp Insurance Renewal:

Hartman stated this comes out of the County Clerk's Office. Hartman noted that the insurance rates
will not be presented to the County until well after the Budget Hearings as that is when they are
available. Hartman presented the premiums and tax levy expected. Hartman noted that over 50
employees were added and this has adjusted the Workers Compensation. Fried noted this was
received.

Human Services — On Call Pay for Energy Assistance:

Hoerchler stated that this would help compensate the employees that are on-call for Energy
Assistance. Hoerchler noted that this would be paid out through the program. Lueneburg stated that
in the past there was no compensation for on-call Energy Assistance. Hoerchler explained that the
funding is through the state program.

Motion/Second: Jensen/Fried to adjust the WHEAP program to provide for pager pay when
needed, with the funding to come from the Energy Assistance program. All “Aye”; 1 Aye, Student
Vote; Motion passes.

Human Services — Conversion of CCS Facilitator position to Mental Health Technician
position:

Gottsacker stated this is budget neutral and is 100% billable to the grant. Lueneburg stated this is a
cost savings and changes the position from a grade level J to a G to a lower graded position.
Lueneburg explained that it changes the education requirements and will hopefully make recruitment
easier. Schreier stated that this was one of the positions that was to be re-evaluated after the
integration. Schreier noted that this position is not filled at this time so it will not affect an existing
employee with a pay reduction.

Motion/Second: Fried/Schreier to approve the Human Services — Conversion of CCS Facilitator
position to Mental Health Technician position as presented. All “Aye”; 1 Aye, Student Vote; Motion
passes.

Monthly reports (including invoices paid, budget to actual) and department updates:
Fried noted that the following reports were submitted.
a. LRES
b. Finance
e Sales Tax by Month Report
e Checking Account Report
c. ITS
e |T Planning update




d. Treasurer
e. County Clerk

Public comment: None

Dates and items for future agenda/meetings:
The next date was set for October 6™ is the next meeting.

ADJOURNMENT:
Chairman Fried adjourned the meeting at 11:05 a.m.




